ClientBase Windows Overview for Users



ClientBase Windows Overview for Users

This *ClientBase* Overview is designed to provide you with a quick reference to some of the most commonly used features in *ClientBase*. This is not the ClientBase Manual. The ClientBase manual, which has been designed to provide detailed instruction for the front-line agents and the agency management and marketing teams is accessible from every ClientBase workstation via electronic help files that are updated automatically with every ClientBase release. By going to **File|Help** in *ClientBase*, and selecting *Contents, Index* or *Search*, you get answers to your questions anytime while working in the program.

In addition to our technical documentation, we offer Recorded Trainings that provides interactive training with the convenience of working on your own computer at your own pace. These are located on our website under **Training|ClientBase|Recorded Trainings** at http://www.trams.com.

We also offer a series of On-Line Training Courses (on our WebEx link under Training|ClientBase at <u>http://www.trams.com</u> which breaks the program down into digestible bites and provides one-hour live instruction within a small group. On-line daily Question and Answer sessions are available for interactive question/answer forums with ClientBase support personnel and other ClientBase users.

We further offer unlimited technical support by calling our team of highly trained support personnel at 310-641-8726 Option 2, or emailing a question to Trams.CBSupport@sabre.com.

Everyone learns in different ways and at different paces. Here at Trams and ClientBase Products and Services, we provide you with a multitude of ways to learn ClientBase because the sooner you begin reaping the benefits of ClientBase, the sooner you'll be SELLING MORE TRAVEL. We're sure of it!

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ClientBase Windows Overview for Users	1
Getting to Know ClientBase	3
Streamline Marketing with Point-and-Click Codes	11
Quick Steps to Using Marketing Point-and-Click Codes	11
Be Prepared with Travel/Payment History	11
Quick Steps to View Trams Travel History	
Quick Steps to View Trams Payment History	13
Strengthen Client Relationships with Activity Manager	13
Quick Steps to Using the Activity Manager	14
Generate Target Client Lists with Level 2 and 3 Queries	15
Quick Steps to Using the Level 2 Query	15
Quick Steps to Using the Level 3 Query	
Save Query Folders with Date Formulas for Future Use	18
Quick Steps to Save Query Folders with_Date Formulas for Future Use	
Run Labels fro Quick, Effective Marketing	19
Quick Steps to Print Labels	19
Print Custom Letters Easily with Document Templates	20
Quick Steps toi Print Custom Letters	
Save Time & Duplication with Merge to PNR	21
Quick Steps to Merging a Profile into a PNR	21
Email Blast – 21 st Century Communication	21
Quick Steps to Email Blast	
Understand Your Database with Reporting	23
Quick Steps to ClientBase Reporting	
Manage the Trip Planning Process with Res Cards	23
Quick Steps to Automate Res Cards	24
Quick Steps to Create Res Cards/Invoices	
Using Live Connect	25
Quick Steps to Using Live Connect	
Using Inventory in ClientBase	
Quick Steps to Using Inventory	27



Getting to Know ClientBase

When there is work to be done in *ClientBase*, the Main Screen is the place to go - retrieve profiles, create new profiles, manage marketing activities, move information into a PNR, generate custom letters, run reports and do a whole lot more. This the *ClientBase* Main Screen:



Located on top of the main screen are the **FILE MENU ITEMS** (File, Edit, Reports, Merge To, Workstation Defaults, Global Defaults, Utilities, Windows, and Help). Click on the menu item, or use the Hot Keys (Alt +Underlined Letter) to get to the menu items. An arrow to the right of a menu indicates there are additional submenus for your selection. Anything that needs to be done in *ClientBase* can be done from the Main Menu. If items are *grayed out* on the File Menu Items, it is because only the administrator can use those items that set up the program.

The **TOOLBAR** provides short-cuts to frequently performed tasks such as creating a new profile, launching a document template or moving profile data into a PNR. Place your cursor on any of the buttons on the Tool Bar and a call-out box appears describing the function of that button.





Located to the left of the main screen are the *ClientBase* FILE MANAGERS. Managers:

(1) The *Profile Manager* allows you to easily manage your profile data (Leisure, Corporate, Vendor, Agent and Other) and provides query filters and results listed by Profile.

(2) The *Activity Manager* allows you to easily manage your Activity data (Notes, Reminders and Mailers) and provides query filters and results listed by Activity.

(3) The *Res Card Manager* allows you to easily manage your Res Card data and provides query filters and results listed by Res Card data.

(4) *The Inventory Manager* allows you to manage your database of *Inventory* items.

(5) The *Internet Manager* allows you to launch a website right from within *ClientBase* and to setup default Global and Personal Internet "favorite" sites that can be accessed with a click of the mouse>.

(6) Use the Dashboard to view Agency Bulletins, Find a Profile, check out your To-Do List and analyze sales data reports.

(7) *Home*. Agencies configured with a specific private labeled version of CB, *Home* is where to go to access the booking site. For agencies without a specific private label, *Home* takes you to the ClientBase Marketing Services web site by default.

Query filters and column arrangements that have been saved and named as a folder. With a single mouse-click, these folders automatically complete your Query Filters and display Query Results.

Although the system comes with a default set of folders within each File Manager, these folders are completely userdefinable. Enter the desired query filters, arrange your columns as desired, then click on *File* and *Save Query As* to save as a folder within the File Manager. Folders can be saved on a Global Level, meaning the folder is available to all Users, or they can be saved on a Personal Level, which means the folder is only available for your unique User Login. To select a folder from the File Manager, click on the folder and the system automatically completes the query filters, sift through the data, and display the outcome in the Query Results Window to the right. To rename or delete a folder, right-click on the folder name.

Do simple or complex query searches based on the selected **QUERY FILTERS**. Depending in which of the File Managers you are working, the Query Filters vary, as do the type of results displayed. Since Activities and Res Cards are actually part of a profile record, the Profile Manager allows you to search for profiles using any profile fields as search criteria, including Activity and Res Card fields.

In the Activity Manager, search for activities using any activity fields as search criteria. The Res Card Manager as does the Inventory Manager allows you to search for Res Cards or Inventory using any Res Card or Inventory fields as search criteria.

Query Level 1

evel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Du	be Checker Results		
Filters			
Profile Type 👻		•	😽 Refresh
Profile Name/Company 👻]		Reset

The Query 1 level allows you to quickly locate a profile or a group of profiles by simply completing one or two query filters. The drop-down field to the left identifies what to search by, and the blank field to the right allows you to type in what to search for. If both fields are used in this query, then the results will match both criteria, not either/or. This means the query filters are strung together with an "and", not an "or".

For example, if you are looking for a Leisure Client named Harry Ford, then set the first field to Profile Type and select *Leisure* from drop-down menu, and set the second field to Last Name and enter "for". All Leisure Clients with the Last Name starting with "for" appear in the Query results. Double-click on the Harry Ford's entry to view his profile.

Query Level 2

a better the states	Marketing	Segmentation	Activities	Traveler/Contact	Cards	Res Cards	More Fields	Travel History
Profile Type		10 	Profile No.	to		Communic. Type	ations	1
Profile Name						6.4	•]	Primary
Last	Fi	rst	Middle	Courtesy Title		Eney		Frescholde.
Additional Name		201	ALCOND.	11111111111111111111111111111111111111		-		
Address Line 1 Address Line 2			A	pt /Suite		From To Profile Cre	∎ Lose I ▼ . ate Date	
Zip Code	f .	* <u>Cite</u>		 State 			★ 10	
Country Marketing Perm	ission [•)	Invalid		Profile Cre	ate User * dified Date	
		Trave	Category			D. D. H.	- 10	No. Contra
Interface ID			called hits and			The second states	Charles and a state of the stat	Territe and all in

The Query 2 level provides additional filters to more narrowly define your search. Search filters are selected by clicking on *Filter* and then completing as many of the search criteria fields as desired. Each field selected is strung together with an "and" which more narrowly defines the query.

For example, if you have just received a hot cruise special to Europe and want to send a mailing to all past and potential cruise clients interested in Europe and living in the 90045 zip code, put the following filters in your query. Enter "90045" in the *Zip Code* field; select "Cruise" under *Marketing/What Interests;* "Europe" under *Marketing/Where*. Now you have selected the filters to query your database for all leisure clients in the 90045 zip code area who expressed an interest in cruising and want to go to Europe. When you click *OK*, all clients in your database meeting the selection criteria are displayed in the Results Screen. You are now ready to print your labels and send the mailing.

Query Level 3

Travel History	TBO Marketing F	eida .						
General Info	Communication	Markeling	Segmentation	Activities	Traveler/Contact	Cards	Res Cards	More Fields
Profile Type				Profile No.		to		
Profile Name		-				1000		
Last Name		*		First Name				
Middle Name		+]	\$	Contexy Title				
Additional Name	1							
Address Type Inc	kudes (Any)	DR Ds	imary Address scord Address	E Bill To Adv From JAN	best Diskip 1 + To (DEC	o Address	E Altern	ate Address
Address Type Inv Address Line 1 Address Line 2	hudes (Any)		imary Address scand Address	E Bill To Add From JAN Age/	besi 🎒 Ship T - To (DEC Suite	o Address +) [[Altern Traveler	ate Address
Address Type Inv Address Line 1 Address Line 2	kudes (Any)		imary Address scand Address } }	E Bill To Add From JAN Age/	aless Ship 1 - To (DEC Suite	o Address	Altern Traveler	ate Addess
Address Type Inv Address Line 1 Address Line 2 Edu State	Audes (Any)	• DR DS: • •	imary Address scand Address]]	El Bil To Ade From Jani Apa/	tesa El Ship T - To (DEC Suite unitity Marketing Pomi	o Address +) III Ision (C Atem	ate Address
Address Type Inv Address Line 1 Address Line 2 City State Zio Code	kudes (Any)		imay Address econd Address 	El Ba To Add From JAN Apt/ Co	tess Ship 1 - To DEC Suite unity Marketing Permi	o Address	Altern Traveler	ate Address
Address Line 1 Address Line 2 Edu State Zip Code	Audes (Any)	• En Es- • • • •	imary Address scored Address	E Bit To Add From JAN Apt/ Co Travel Catego	Aesa El Ship T - To (DEC Suite unitity Marketing Pormi	o Address	Altern Traveler	ate Address ate Address d

The Query Level 3 provides users with an even greater ability to more narrowly define a search. As detailed above, Level 2 Query allows a search by any number of fields, stringing one statement of criteria together with an "and." Query Level 3 strings multiple statements of criteria together with an "or," using *search method options* (operators) to define how the criteria should filter.

For example, you want to mail a promotion to all of Sharon's clients who have traveled on Crystal Cruises. You select Sharon as the primary agent and Leisure as the profile type; and under the travel history tab, select *Does Have Travel History Records with following criteria* as the Filter Type, and enter Crystal Cruises in the vendor field. After clicking *OK*, and then *Refresh*, the results screen filter out all of Sharon's leisure clients who have traveled on Crystal Cruises. But you may want also to call up all of Mary's clients who have traveled on Carnival Cruises. Click *Add Filter*, select Mary as the primary agent and Leisure as the profile type; under the travel history tab, select *Does Have Travel History Records with the following criteria*, and set the vendor to Carnival. Click *OK* and then *Refresh*. Now not only do you have all of Sharon's Crystal Cruisers, but also (**OR**) Mary's Carnival Cruisers as well.

The **RESULTS SCREEN** displays the results of a query based on the criteria entered into the query filters. Only those records that meet the criteria of the query filters are included in the Query Results. While working in the Profile Manager, all query results are displayed by profile (Leisure, Corporate, Vendor, Agent and Other). While working in the Activity Manager, all query results are displayed by Activity (Notes, Reminders and Mailers). While working in the Res Card or Inventory Manager, all query results are displayed by Res Cards or Inventory entries.

For example, set the Level 1 Query Filters to Profile Type of *Leisure* and Last Name starting with "smit". The Query Results displays all Leisure clients in the database whose last name begins with "smit". To select a record appearing within the results screen, double-click on it and the profile details appear.

Level 1	Level 2 Level 3 Dup	e Checker		
Filters	1			
Profile	е Туре	▼ Leisure	▼ 🥰 Refresh	
Profile	e Name/Company	▼ smi	Reset	
Profi	les			
Profile	Name (PROFILE)	△1 Address Line 1 (PR	IMARYADDRT City (PRIMAR	YADDRT State (PF
L	Smith/Alan	185 Lake Street	Los Angeles	CA
L	Smith/Gladys	1234 Main Street	Los Angeles	CA
L	Smith/John	28 10th.Street	Los Angeles	CA
L	Smith/Linda	567 Citrus Drive	San Pedro	CA

STATUS BAR A glance at the status bar indicates the *Login Name; Database: Memory, Date/Time; Alarms* and more.

Login Name=SHARON Database=C:\ProgramData\Trams\Database\trams.ib 1,820 ME 4/27/2017 9:15:57 AM 0 Alarms

Quick Steps to Using the Profile Manager

The *ClientBase* program defaults to the *Profile Manager* screen when opening the program. You can also access the *Profile Manager* by clicking **Windows**|Profile Manager from the Main Menu.

Step 1: Open the Profile

- **a.** Add a new profile: Be careful not to create duplicate profiles. Look first and verify that a profile does not exist before deciding to add one. We recommend using only the first four/five/six letters of the last name when querying for a profile. To add a new profile, click the ToolBar Icon, *Profile*; File|New; or right mouse click in the results screen, then select the desired profile type.
- **b.** Delete a profile: Are you sure? If so, highlight the profile you want to delete and click the Delete button on the tool bar.

Note: If the profile is attached to any invoice or payment records in *Trams Back Office*, it cannot be deleted without deleting those records first. If you are not able to delete these records, but don't want this profile to appear in the results of any query because it is a duplicate, then set the field *Status* (found in the General Information folder of the profile) to *Inactive*. This will disable the profile, excluding it from any database queries performed. If you want to delete any Activities or Res Cards in *ClientBase* and there are no payment records or invoices in *TBO* attached to the profile, delete the profile, but be aware that you also lose any record of Activities and Res Cards attached to that profile. **c. Retrieve** a profile by using Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 Query.

<u>Step 2: Review, Add to, or Modify the Profile</u>

Double-click on the profile you want to retrieve to view the client's details. The Profile window organizes all the vital information pertaining to your client's needs. We designed this window to be a "dashboard" for travel professionals who need quick access to key client data. Each Leisure profile represents one household. Whether you are retrieving someone's passport number, a second address, or the cruise line last booked, this is the place to go.

BEST PROFILE PRACTICES

- For every client that calls, make sure you have a profile for that client with accurate name, address, phone and email information. *Interface ID and Salutation or some other fields may be required per your agency.* (If there is no profile create a new one.)
- Click on the *Travelers* tab, and enter any traveler with legal first, middle and last name. Birthdays, Passport
 information, communication entries as well as any credit card, frequent flyer card, or other cards may be updated
 in the Traveler tab.
- Always make sure to update the Marketing tab with any interests and demographics you learn about the client.

PROFILE KEY AREAS:

A client profile in *ClientBase* stores an unlimited amount of information about your customers. To organize all this information and make it easily accessible, each profile is made up of six key areas. (Toolbar, Header, Arrows, Profile Indicators, Control Buttons, and Folders).

TOOLBAR



Create a Reminder/Note/Mailer for Profile.

Create a Res Card: Click the Res Card icon to create a new reservation card for trips.

Create a Receipt: In cases where you are not yet ready to issue an invoice, but have received money from a client, create a Receipt.

Print: Click the Print icon to print out details of the profile, or a customer survey.

Merge to Label: Click the *Label* icon to create a label that can be used on a letter, brochure, passport reminder and more.

Merge to Document Template: Click the *Letter* icon to merge client name and address to any letter contained in the document templates.

Merge to PNR: Click the CRS icon to merge profile and traveler details into your reservation system PNR, including Apollo/Galileo, Amadeus, Sabre and Worldspan.

Merge to E-mail: Click the E-mail icon to merge client information into an e-mail message.

Q-View (Quick View): A single click provides you with a summary of key profile data across many tabs of information.

<u>HEADER</u>

Mr. Kenneth David Able	Home Phone: +1 (650) 988-1222	Marketing Codes: 20	Primary Agent: Sharon Meyer
1257 Orange Street	Cell: +1 (650) 333-1234	Primary Traveler: Able/Kenneth David	Created: 10/21/1997
Los Altos CA 94022	Business - Ken: +1 (650) 555-5555	Groups: STANFORD ALUMNI	Salutation: Ken and Sue
2007/1100, 07104022	Home - Los Angeles: +1 (310) 555-1234		Interface ID: 6509881222
	Email: kable@earthlink.net		Profile No.: 384

The header conveniently displays pertinent information including the current mailing address, the first five communication entries captured for this profile, number of Marketing Codes, Primary Traveler, Groups, Voucher Balance, Primary Agent, Profile Create Date, Salutation, Interface ID, and Profile No. By confirming the accuracy of this information, and adding any new details each time a customer calls, the agent ensures that the client's information and therefore the agency marketing data is always up-to-date.

SCROLLING ARROW



The four black arrows provide the ability to move among the profiles included within the current Query in the results screen. Clicking the up arrow displays the profile preceding the one you are in, the down arrow displays the very next profile in the Query. The double up arrow takes you to the first profile in the Query, and the double down arrow takes you to the very last profile in the Query.

PROFILE INDICATORS



The top icon indicates the customer has an active Res Card indicating travel arrangements are in the works. The middle icon indicates there is previous Travel History for this client has previously purchased travel. The bottom icon indicates there's an open reminder alert for this customer. None of the above icons appear in the profile if the client has no Res Card, open reminder or past travel history with your agency.

CONTROL BUTTONS



When any changes to the profile are made in a profile, the screen automatically turns turquoise to alert you that changes have been made:

Close: Takes you out of the profile and only appears if there are no unsaved changes made to the profile. O.K.:

Saves any information that has been added, modified or deleted and exits the profile.

Apply: Saves any information that has been added, modified or deleted and keeps you in the profile.

Cancel: Appears only if the profile has changes that have not been saved and prompts if you want to "Save changes before closing?" If *Yes* is selected, it saves the changes and closes the profile. If *No* is selected, it cancels the changes and closes the profile. If *Cancel* is selected, it returns you back to the profile without saving any changes.

INFORMATION TABS

Each profile contains the following information tabs: General Info, Communications, Remarks, Marketing, Travelers, Activities, Travel History, Cards, Res Cards, Payment History, Attachments, PNR Entries, More Fields, Groups, and Res Card Remarks.

- a. General Info: The General Information screen displays primary client data for this leisure/corporate profile.
- b. Communications: See complete communication entries for all travelers in the profile.
- c. **Remarks:** View any miscellaneous customer from this screen. Users may enter any free flow remarks here.
- d. **Marketing:** The marketing folder provides the means to track client interests and travel preferences to provide selling agents with key information during the qualifying process of selling leisure travel.
- 3. **Traveler**: Organize information for each traveler. Collect details such as passport information, birth dates

and preferences such as air, car, hotel, cruise and tour preferences. Communication and all card information entered in this area, are automatically linked to the traveler.

f. **Activities**: This window lists all past and current Notes, Reminders, and Mailers that have been captured for this profile.

g. **Travel History**: From this window, agents can easily review past travel purchases (invoices) either created in ClientBase or in *Trams Back Office*

h. **Cards**: Keep track of all customer's credit cards, travel clubs, frequent flyer numbers, expiration dates, and more in a customer profile. All card information for any traveler appears in this folder. i. **Res Cards**: This tab allows you to view all customer res cards (trips).

j. **Payment History**: View actual payment information from made in *ClientBase* or *Trams Back Office* including dates paid, amounts, check numbers, and more.

k. **Attachment**: To enhance the information accessible in a *ClientBase* profile, a feature is included in all profile types allowing you to point to other files available on your local or network drive.

I. **PNR Entries**: A PNR Entry table is available at the Profile level so that you can format miscellaneous remarks for this client and then seamlessly paste them into a PNR.

m. **More Fields**: If you want to track it, and *ClientBase* doesn't ask for it, here is where you can create your own customized fields of information.

n. **Groups**: Enter a group(s) to which this customer belongs by clicking on the drop-down menu item after clicking on *Add*.

o. **Res Card Remarks**: Enter any canned remarks you may want to print on invoices for this particular client.

<u>Step 3) Save Any Changes and Move On</u>

After you add/modify/delete information in any of these folders, the profile changes color from white to blue. The color blue in the window is a simple reminder that the changes you made are not permanent until you click *OK* (to save changes and leave the profile), or *Apply* (to save changes and stay in the profile).

Streamline Marketing with Point-and-Click Codes

The Marketing Tables in *ClientBase* helps you identify each of your customer's unique travel preferences, interests and demographics, while at the same time automatically grouping your clients with common codes. Since qualifying a customer for a leisure vacation can be the toughest part of selling leisure travel, access to this valuable information might just make the difference between closing a sale or losing it. These marketing codes make it possible to consistently put the right product in front of the right client by both front-line agents and any marketing programs geared towards generating travel interest.

A master set of marketing tables appears in every client's profile under the *Marketing* folder. With a simple point-and-click with the mouse, every agent selects from the same list, and that means client consistency and agent simplicity.



Example: Greg Burdan calls in and requests some information on a trip to the Cayman Islands. He read about the great destination in his favorite Scuba Weekly magazine and figures it would be a great place for a honeymoon (may as well squeeze in some diving). By clicking on the Marketing Tab in Greg's profile, the agent easily places a checkmark in the box next to Scuba/Snorkel under the What Interests Table. Now, when your agency has a scuba or snorkeling-related itinerary to promote, rest assured that Greg will be included among the other qualified clients you are tempting with the great deal!

Quick Steps to Using Marketing Point-and-Click Codes

Step 1) In the client profile, click the Marketing tab.

Query the client profile and double-click to enter. Click the Marketing tab to enter the Marketing tables.

Step 2) View and select Global Marketing Tables and Codes.

Use the arrows to the right of each marketing table to scroll up or down and view additional entries. Use the two black arrows located on the right margin of the screen to scroll up or down to see more than the first marketing tables. Check off any appropriate marketing item.

Step 3) Tree View Summarizes Selected Client Marketing Codes.

At a glance, match the traveler with an appropriate itinerary or marketing opportunity, by viewing the tree view summary to the left of the Marketing Tables. This tree view summarizes selected client marketing codes.

Be Prepared with Travel/Payment History

The *Travel History* tab is a read-only screen displaying a list of issued invoices (in Trams Back Office if you use that program or *ClientBase*) for this client, providing easy access to past travel history, number of invoices issued, sum total of bookings, average booking amount and the total commission.

Able/Kenni	eth - LES	URE														101	10
Deis	aire		Ramond	70 Hote	1 Male	Res Cars	Racetot	Pret		Letter	PTR PTR	() trai	A.				
Mr. Kenneth 1258 Orenge Los Aftos, C/	David A Street 94022	bla ,	Home Dustries Nome - Los /	e Phone: Cell: ss - Ken: Angeles: Email:	+1 (65 +1 (65 +1 (65 +1 (31 kable@	0) 986-12 0) 333-12 0) 555-55 0) 555-12 earthlink,)	22 M 34 H 55 34 Net	eketing Cr inary Tran Gro	odes: 21 Jeler: Able Supe: STA	/Kennet NFORD /	h David Allumni	Primery C Sal Dyter Pro	Agenti Si Veated: 10 Valetion: K face ID: 6 file No. : 3	haron Heyer 5/21/1997 en and Sue 509661222 84			Close Activ
More Fields	Groupe	Res Care	t Renarks	T				_		1							_
General Lrifo	Corrent,	unications.	Rehato	s Mar	keting	Travelers	Activitie	H Trav	el History	Cards	Res Card	1. Pay	Herk Histor	y Attach	vents.	MR Entries	
Tyl Cat. J key	4		Essue Cert	e		. (Jount: 27	1	170	Committee	4					Custor	Query
					1	* Av	Total: stage:	30,730 L 137	.04	145.0 145.0	a presission T	itals :				liun	Query
Invoice Type		Jose Da	e	17/0	509 # .	Vendor			,	ravel Cat	egory	Tota	(fere) 2	Commission	Cor.5	10 Co 1	Hes Card
Sale		1/21/201	3	100	106	Carrevel	Ouse Line		0	ivite		1,30	0.00	225.00	52	Aller	ant hermine
Sale		12/26/20	12	100	105	Furget V.	scations		1	0.0		965	38	107.36	JP1	Careb	all alloped
Sale		12/26/20	12	100	105	Around 1	he World Tr	avel	5	ervice Fer	ŧ	25.0	0	24,25			
Sale		1/16/201	D.	. 100	400	Shiersea	Ouises LT	D	0	Juise		L,00	0.00	0.00	120 1		
Sale		1/16/201	0	100	100	TraveBo	und		1	our		500	00	0.00	23*		
Sole		5/19/200	6	1000	086	Furget V	scations		1	our		1,06	1.66	61.12	KTE		
Sale		12/16/20	01	1000	828	Crystal C	Tuises		5	inése		B,00	00-00	1,484.00	563		
Sale		8/13/200	1	1100	621	Crystal C	in lites		0	hise		1,00	00.8	0.00	560		
Sale		5/5/2001		1000	015	Royal Ca	ribbean Ov	/665	ç	ruse		500	00	70.00			
Sale		1/3/2001	E.	1100	005	Royal Ca	ribbeen Cis	1965	ç	Juse		500	00	0.00			
Sale		9/6/2000	1	1000	909	Holland J	inerica Line	1	0	suise		2,12	5.00	525.00	++		
Sale		9/5/2000	12 mil	100	008	Holand J	Interica Line	5	0	Julse		1,00	00.00	0.00	++-		
Sale		9/3/2000	<u>8</u>	100	190	50.50 To	U/S		1	0.0		962	00	\$17.84	990		
Sale		9/2/2000	6	5000	907	ป้ารมาอาด	e Company	of America	8 3	ISUFARICE.		250	00	82.50			
Sale		8/31/200	0	1000	906	Holand A	Inerica Line	5	ç	nise		500	00	0.00	++		
A Land			0	200		Unite Sta	et the			×		1900	· · · ·	\$7.90.	+		

View actual payment information from an invoice created either in *Trams Back Office* or *ClientBase* including dates paid, amounts, check numbers, etc.

Agents cannot make any changes to the invoice or payment records displayed in the Travel History or Payment History tabs. The combination of travel purchase data (History folder) and travel preference data (Marketing Info. folder) gives you the ultimate capability to match your clients with offers for products they will enjoy and can afford.

Example: Nancy Schroeder, a long-time agency customer, is coming in this afternoon to talk about the possibility of booking a cruise. She's looking for some fresh ideas on an exciting new travel experience. You quickly access her profile in ClientBase and checkout her Travel History. From here you determine if she has ever booked a cruise and, if so the cruise line, the itinerary and how much was spent. Looking at other travel categories, itineraries and vendors booked also gives you some insight on her past travel tendencies.

Next, you review her marketing preferences and by the time Nancy make it to your desk, you feel prepared and confident in making a travel recommendation she can't refuse.

Quick Steps to View Trams Travel History

<u>Step 1) Determine if a Customer Has Travel History.</u>

After retrieving a customer profile, quickly determine if a customer has Travel History by looking at the indicator symbol found on top of the client profile. If Travel History exists, a *Trams* icon appears to the left of the *OK*, *Close and Apply* buttons.

Step 2) Click on the Travel History Icon or Tab to Open the History Folder.

By default all past Travel History is displayed in the tab, invoice by invoice, booking by booking. In addition to the listing of past purchases, Sales and Commission Totals and Averages are displayed.

Step 3) Sort and Filter Results.

The field *Sort* controls the way the query results are displayed on the screen. Sort on different fields by clicking on the down arrow located to the right of the field and selecting from the list (Issue Date, Depart Date, Travel Category, Traveler Name, Agent, Invoice #, Invoice Type, Invoice Status, and Ticket/Confirmation #). To narrow the search to a specific time period, enter a From and To date in the Issue Date fields. The arrows to the right of the fields bring up a calendar to help in your selection. Click *Run Query* to update your results. Tvl Cat. can also be used as search criteria (e.g. "show me only cruise history") by clicking on the down arrow located to the right of this field and selecting from the list. Click *Run Query* to update your results.

<u>Step 4) Use the Custom Query.</u>

The Custom Query screen in the Travel History folder gives you even further flexibility in locating specific travel history.

Included as search criteria are Sort by, Vendor, Travel Category, Total Fare Range, Agent Name, Traveler Name, Depart Date Range, Client Payment Status, Vendor Payment Status, Invoice Client Name, Invoice No., Invoice Type, Invoice Status, and Issue Dates Range.

Quick Steps to View Trams Payment History

Step 1) Click the Payment History Tab.

When you enter the Payment History tab, by default all past receipts and disbursements are displayed.

Step 2) Set Up the Selection Criteria.

Set up the Selection Criteria in the Sort, Tvl. Cat., and Issue Date fields. Click Run Query button to display desired query.

Step 3) Choose a Custom Query.

For more advanced queries, click on the Custom Query button and fill in selection criteria. Click *OK* to display desired query.

Strengthen Client Relationships with Activity Manager

Tired of the paper nightmare taking over your desk? So many post-it notes you can hardly find your computer? Through the use of Reminders, Notes, and Mailers, *ClientBase* makes tracking communication with your clients a paperless process. Best of all, this information can be shared among agents and used to manage the marketing activities going on in your agency.



Reminders act as "ticklers" to keep you on top of important activities like brochure follow-ups, final payments, welcome home calls, birthdays and other marketing activities. Agents create Reminders to schedule future contacts and maintain daily to-do lists.

Notes allow Agents to easily document contact your customers have with your agency such as Client Comments, Client Inquiries, or Client Questions.

Mailers act like entries in a marketing "log." They are a historical record created automatically whenever a label, document template, E-mail, or mail merge file is created for a client or group of clients.

Example: The agency's most productive agent, Sharon, works from a daily reminder and todo list in ClientBase. From this area, she tracks and completes all of the customer marketing tasks that keep her valued clients loyal. ClientBase helps Sharon manage her schedule and "to-do" list so she is efficient at 1) Following-up and closing just about any travel lead that comes her way; 2) Managing all of the tasks involved in planning a trip, including checking on payments, documents, waitlists, seating etc.; and 3)Welcoming her customers home from their trips, as well as scheduling and managing ongoing communications with her valued customers.

Studies have shown agents' productivity and sales increase dramatically when using an activities management system like ClientBase. Better agent productivity is an important ingredient of a happy and successful agency. Scheduling your day by making lists, following up on leads, and working in a way to finish what you start, is a gift you give yourself. This approach fosters good habits that enrich your client relationships. The Activity Manager opens the door to a greater understanding of our clients - and greater profits for agents and agencies.

The way that Sharon begins her work day each morning tells you one of the reasons that she is a productive agent. The first thing she does when she signs into ClientBase is click on the Activities tab. By default, ClientBase queries the database for Sharon's Open Reminders and the Results Screen immediately displays a list of the Reminders (or tasks) she needs to complete today.

😰 - 👫 🥭 9 Yafie Remind Note Ma	aler Res Ci	nd Invento	ry Print	Label Letter	MAR E-	nal Gance Go	To Dek
Dashboard Home Profiles	Level 1 La	rvel 2 Level 3	3				
tivities Res Cards Inventory Internet	Elters	No. of the other states	1997 F				
	T HART &				100000	-	
Activity Manager	Login Nam	e shukun	· Select (ipen Reminders Only	S Refré	ST .	
	From Da	te 6/27/2017	 To Date 6 	/27/2017 •	Reset		
Reminders Open Reminders Only Open Reminders Only Malers	Activit	ies.			Court	t At a Gance	111 Columns
Agent's Open Reminders	Tune (A	Privity (AR	di contrare (ac	nythawe secreted	Actually Date	INTERNAL ACTIVITY	Benais
Personal	P R	High	SHARON	Bue Michael	6/27/2017	Final Payment Due	Treiner ner
Next months reminders	R	Hoh	SHARON	Sharon Mever	6/27/2017	Medical	Dentist
- Welcome Home	-	Hoh	SHARON	Tri-Star Productions	6/27/2017	Client Meeting	CEO to re
	and the second se						
Past due open reminders	R	High	SHARON	All World Transportation Co.	6/27/2017	Agent Appointment	Meet with
Past due open reminders Weekly trip inquires	R	High High	SHARON	All World Transportation Co. Larson/Wayne	6/27/2017 6/27/2017	Agent Appointment Trip Planning	Meet with Meet to n
Post due open reminders Weekly trip inquiries Yesterday, Today, Tomorrow Today's Trip Follow-ups	R	High High High	SHARON SHARON SHARON	All World Transportation Co. Larson/Wayne Smith/Linda	6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017	Agent Appointment Trip Planning Trip Planning	Meet with Meet to re Linda is ct
Past due open reminders Weekly trip inquires Testerday, Today, Tomorrow Today's Trip Follow-ups 6/27 reminders	RRR	High High High High	SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON	All World Transportation Co. Larson/Wayne Smith/Linda Bascon/Carl	6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017	Agent Appointment Trip Planning Trip Planning Client Meeting	Meet with Meet to re Linda is ct Meet with
Past due open reminders Weekly trip inguites Yesterday, Today, Tenorrisw Today's Trip Follow-ups 6/27 reminders	R R R R R	High High High High	SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON	All World Transportation Co Larson/Wayne Smith/Linda Bascon/Carl Welch/Diane	6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017	Agent Appointment Trip Planning Trip Planning Client Meeting Deposit Due	Meet with Meet to re Linda is co Meet with
Past due open reminders Weekly trip inguites Today, Today, Tomorrow Today's Trip Fallow-ups 6/27 reminders	R R R R R R R	High High High High High Medum	SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON	All World Transportation Co. Larson/Wayne Snith/Landa Bascon/Carl Wield//Dane Able/Kenneth	6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017	Agent Appointment Trip Planning Trip Planning Client Meeting Deposit Due Check for Documents	Meet with Meet to n Linde is ct Meet with Tim going
Past due open reminders Weekly trip inguires Yesterday, Today, Tomorrów Today's Trip Falow-ups 6/27 reminders	RRRRR	High High High High High Medum Medum	SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON	Al World Tramportation Co Larson/Wayne Smith/Linda Bascom/Carl Welch/Diane Able/Amnoth Anderson/Ed	6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017	Agent Appointment Trip Planning Trip Planning Client Meeting Deposit Due Check for Documents Bi-Annual Touch Base	Meet with Meet to n Linda is ct Meet with Tim going
Past due open reminders Weekly top kngungs Testerday, Today, Tomorrów Today's The Fallow-ups 6/27 reminders		High High High High High Medum Medum	SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON	Al World Transportation Co Lanson/Waynie Smith/Linda Bascon/Carl Weldh/Diane Able/Azeneth Anderson/Ed Clayton/Jack	6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017	Agent Appointment Trip Planning Trip Planning Client Meeting Deposit Due Chick for Documents Bi-Annual Touch Base Client Meeting	Meet with Meet to n Linda is ct Meet with I'm gang Set up de
Past due open reminders Weekly trip inguides Testenday, Today, Tomorrów Today's Trip Faloa-ups 6/27 reminders		High High High High Medum Medum Medum Medum	SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON	Al World Transportation Co. Larson/Wayne Smith/Linds Bascon/Carl Welch/Dane Able/Kenneth Anderson/Ed Clayton/Jack Jonker Mennedy	6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017	Agent Appointment Trip Planning Trip Planning Client Meeting Deposit Due Check for Documenta Bi-Annual Touch Base Client Meeting Touch Base	Meet with Meet to n Linda is ct Meet with I'm gang Set up die Call to ser
Past due open reminders Weekly trip inguites Testenday, Today, Tomorriw Today's Trip Follow-ups 6/27 reminders		High High High High High Medum Medum Medum Medum	SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON	Al Worki Transportation Co. Larson/Warne Smith/Linda Bascon/Carl Welch/Diane Able/Kemoth Anderson/Ed Clayton/Jack Janker /Kemedy Greene/Colin and Kabe	6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017	Agent Appointment Trip Planning Trip Planning Client Meeting Deposit Due Check for Documents Bi-Annual Touch Base Client Meeting Touch Base Check for Documents	Meet with Meet to N Linda is ct Meet with I'm gang Set up die Call to ser Finalize tr
Past due open reminders Weekly trip inguites Today's trip Follow-ups 6/27 reminders		High High High High High Medum Medum Medum Medum Medum	SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON SHARON	Al World Transportation Co. Larson/Wayne Smith/Linda Bascon/Carl Weldy/Dane Able/Kenneth Anderson/Ed Clayton/Jack Jonier /Kennedy Greene/Coln and Kabe Stone/Jenny	6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017	Agent Appointment Trip Planning Trip Planning Client Meeting Deposit Due Check for Documents Bi-Annual Touch Base Client Meeting Touch Base Check for Documents Welcome Home	Meet with Meet to n Linda is ct Meet with I'm gang Set up die Call to ser Finalze tr Call to ve
Past due open reminders Weekly tip kngunes Yesterday, Today, Tomorrów Today's Tip Fallow-ups 6/27 reminders		High High High High Medum Medum Medum Medum Medum Medum	94ARON 94ARON 94ARON 94ARON 94ARON 94ARON 94ARON 94ARON 94ARON 94ARON	Al World Transportation Co. Larson,Wayne Smith/Linda Bascon/Carl Weldy/Dane Able/Kenneth Anderson/Ed Clayton/Jack Jonker /Kennedy Greene/Colin and Kabe Stone/Jonny Sharp/Janet	6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017 6/27/2017	Agent Appointment Trip Planning Trip Planning Client Meeting Deposit Due Check for Documents B -Annual Touch Base Client Meeting Touch Base Check for Documents Welcome Home Touch Base - Shore Exc	Meet with Meet to n Linda is ct Meet with I'm gang Set up die Call to ser Finalze tr Call to we zis 6/25/16 C

She can also click the Glance icon in the toolbar to see her day's schedule in a calendar format.

Quick Steps to Using the Activity Manager

<u>Step 1) Use Reminders to Schedule New Travel Inquiry Follow-ups.</u>

Cultivate travel interest and turn it into a sale by putting systematic follow-up routines in place. Use Reminders to remind you of these follow-up calls and any other tasks you need to do. This is easily also done by creating a new Res Card whenever a client calls about a trip by clicking Res Card on the Tool Bar from within the client's profile. Fill in the Res Cycle, Trip Name, and click Apply. Next, click the Activity Tab and create a Reminder to follow up. Put any travel notes in the Remarks area of the Reminder. Rest assured that this Reminder automatically appears on your "to-do" list on the scheduled day.

Step 2) Use Notes to Document Client Interaction.

Document when a customer calls and makes a comment or asks a question by clicking Note on the Tool Bar from within the client's profile, or from the Results Screen. Each Note includes the Date and Time the note is created, the User, a pulldown menu for the subject of the note, for example, "Client Question," a Private box that can be checked to limit access, a pull-down menu to attach the note to a reservation, and a field for free flow remarks. Any agent in the office with the security permission can view this Note by opening the profile and clicking on Activities.

Step 3) Use the Activity Manager To Review Your "To-Do" List of Follow-up Calls.

Once you have started creating Reminders to track your new trip inquiry follow-up calls, access an organized "to-do" list every day. This is obtained by opening the Activity Manager area of ClientBase. By clicking the Activity Manager tab, ClientBase automatically queries your database for any Reminders scheduled for today that have not been completed.

Start by double-clicking on the Reminder to enter. Hot-key to the attached profile by clicking Go To Profile. From the profile, access phone information, as well as other key data that adds the personal touch necessary for effective marketing. Click on the Activities tab of the profile to refresh your memory of previous contacts you've had with the client. Use the Complete Date located within the Reminder record, to identify when a Reminder has been completed and then remove it from your "to-do" list by clicking Refresh. *Step 4) Track Other Activities with Reminders.* Once you've developed the habit of following up on travel inquires, start using Reminders to organize other marketing and administrative tasks such as Welcome Home calls, payment deadlines, document checking and more. Retrieve the profiles of your most loyal customers and schedule at least three occasions to reach out and touch them to remind them how valuable they are. Use things like birthdays, anniversaries, annual vacation times and holidays as a reason to communicate with these customers. Each time you put your agency in front of your customers, you re-enforce your relationships, reminding them you are their travel professional.

<u>Step 5) Use At a Glance to Help Manage Your Schedule for a Particular Day, Week or Month</u>

The Activity Manager not only provides a listing of Open Reminders, but also the ability to arrange your Reminders in an At a Glance format. Click the Glance icon on the toolbar, and the system defaults to today's schedule, listing Reminders that have been scheduled for a particular time to the left in 15 minute intervals, and the Reminders that have been set as "timeless" listed to the right under an area called To Do List.

On top retrieve a calendar for the current month that provides you with the ability to look at your schedule for any other day of the month by clicking on the day; or you can look at your schedule for any day of other months by clicking on the arrows to left and right of the month. In addition to viewing a schedule for a particular day, you can also view your schedule for an entire week or an entire month by clicking on Week at a Glance and Month at a Glance.

Step 6) Set Time/Date Alarms for Important Events

The Activity Manager area of ClientBase provides an organized list of your marketing tasks to complete for the day, but what if you need a little help remembering to complete one of these tasks at a specific time of the day?

Reminders in ClientBase come with built-in Alarms that can be set, on a Reminder-by-Reminder basis. To turn on an Alarm for a particular Reminder, place a check in the box, Alarm, and designate how many minutes prior to the time of the Reminder the Alarm should be activated. Save your Reminder and as long as the ClientBase application is open, regardless of the program in which you are currently working, an Alarm window appears on your screen at the designated time. When an Alarm is activated, a window appears that includes the details of the Reminder along with three options: **Off** (Turns off the Alarm but keeps the Reminder open and on your to-do list); **Snooze** (Reschedules the Alarm for a future time); **View** (Allows you to work the Reminder as you would from the Activity Manager).

Generate Target Client Lists with Level 2 and 3 Queries

When you need to identify a list of clients for analysis, follow-up, mailings or other promotions, run a query. Queries enable you to make the most of the data you put into *ClientBase* by providing more ways of getting the data out of the program. A query allows you to ask your database specific question(s) and the database answers with a list of clients who have the right answers. Information from different fields can be combined in one query to generate very interesting lists.

Using the Level 2 Query

The Query Level 2 provides many filters to more narrowly define your search. Search filters are selected by clicking on *Filter* and then completing as many of the search criteria fields as desired. Each field selected is strung together with an "and" more narrowly defining the query.

Examples: Use Level 2 Query to review all the client profiles created this month and then merge those results to a "Welcome to Our Agency Letter." Or create a personal folder of all your VIP clients where you are the primary agent, so you can access the list easily.

Quick Steps to Using the Level 2 Query

Step 1) Click on the Level 2 Tab from the Profile Manager

Make sure that your current Manager is the Profile Manager and click on the tab, *Level 2*. Next, click *Filter* to access the screens of search criteria.

A DELIGITION OF THE OWNER	Marketing	Segmentation	Activities	Traveler/Contact	Cards	Res Cards	More Fields	Travel Histor
Profile Type			Profile No.	to		Communic Type	ations	1
Profile Name						0	•	Primary
Last	Fi	fot	Middle	Courtesy Title		Entry		rvesco posor.
Additional Name	1	204		100000000000000000000000000000000000000				
Address Line 1	diess Fion	i JAN -	To DEC	-) [[] Traveler		Special Da Mor From	Xes db Daw Yi ▼	ear <u>Ivoe</u>
Zip Code		+ City	_	• State		Profile Life	ate Date • 10	
Country						Profile Cre	ate User	
Marketing Perm	ission [*)	Invalid		Profile Mo	dified Date	
		Trave	d Category		÷.		• 10	
Interface ID						Proble Mrs	ddiad Hyar E	Neibla Chatrie

<u>Step 2) Select Criteria for Search</u>

The window is divided into folders - General Info, Marketing, Activities, Travelers, Cards, ResCards, MoreFields and Travel History - available for you to use as search criteria. Any combination of these fields can be used together as search criteria. To begin, select a folder that contains the field(s) to search. Then enter criteria for every field that is relevant to your search. Different combinations of fields and folders can be used. If multiple fields are used as search criteria, each field is strung to the next with an "and," meaning the results of the query only include the profiles the match all of the criteria. Each marketing table is considered a separate field, so multiple items across the tables are connected with an "and." When selecting multiple items within one marketing table as search criteria, each item is strung together with an "or," meaning the results of the query of the marketing items selected within that table. Hint: Less is more when using selection criteria.

Step 3) Run the Query

Click *OK* to run the query based on the criteria you selected. Remember, if you don't get the results you want, you can always run the query a slightly different way. (A summary of all current selection criteria can be viewed in the *Filters* area of the Results Screen.)

<u>Step 4) Review Results</u>

The resulting profiles from the Level 2 Query window appear with a list of the profiles that match your search criteria. Above the list is a total count of those profiles that matched your criteria. Run reports on these results, save the results in a Global or Personal folder, or merge the results to Labels, Document Templates, Emails or files.

From this list modify profile information by double-clicking on the name, or by selecting the name and pressing *Enter*. Once inside a profile record, the black Up and Down arrows page you through only those profiles included in this query.

Using the Level 3 Query

The Query Level 3 provides users with an even greater ability to more narrowly define a search. Query Level 3 strings multiple statements of criteria together with an "or," using *search method options* to define how the criteria should filter. **Examples:** Use Level 3 Query to print a label for all of your customers coded as deluxe cruisers over 65 - who have zip codes in the system. Or send an E-mail to Sharon's Crystal cruisers, OR to Sharon's Carnival cruisers.

Quick Steps to Using the Level 3 Query

<u>Step 1) Click on the Level 3 Tab from the Profile Manager</u>

Make sure that your current Manager is the Profile Manager and click the *Level 3* tab. Click *Reset All* if any filters exist to create a fresh query. Next, click *Add Filter* to access the screens of search criteria.

Travel History	TB0 Marketing	Fielda						
General Info	Communication	Marketing	Segmentation	Activities	Travelet/Contact	Cards Re	es Cards	More Fields
Profile Type				Profile No.		to		
Profile Name		-				110%		
Last Name		*]		First Name				
Middle Name		÷	s	Coatesy Title			10	-
NAME OF	C.							
Additional Name	cludes (Any)) DPi	imary Address scored Address	Bill To Add	dess EShip - To DEC	To Address -] 🛅 To	E Alternat	e Address
Additional Name	xchudes (Any) 1 [•) BR 54	imary Address scond Address]]	Bill To Ade From JAN	dess EShip - To(DEC Suite	To Address	Alternat tavoler	e Address
Additional Name Address Type Ir Address Line Address Line	1 []	• EP	imary Address scored Address]]	EB# To Adt From JAN Ap#/	dees ElShip - To(DEC Suite	To Address	Alternat raveler	e Address
Additional Name Address Type Ir Address Line Address Line Ca State	schudes (Any) 1 [2 [8 [- ER Esi -	imary Address scond Address]]]	E Bill To Add From JAN Apt/	desa El Ship +) To/DEC Suite untty Marketing Pen	To Address	El Alternat raveler	e Address
Additional Name Address Type Ir Address Line Address Line Ca Stab Zip Cod	1 [] 2 [] 2 [] 2 [] 2 [] 2 []	• EP ES4 • • •	imany Address second Address	El SH To Ad Flom JAN Apt/ Co	decs EliShip - To (DEC Suite antiy Marketing Pon	To Address	Alternat raveler	e Address
Additional Name Address Type Ir Address Line Address Line Stab Zip Cod Interface ID	schudes (Any) 1 2 2 9 9	• • • •	imay Address econd Address	El Bill To Add From John Aga/ Co Travel Catego	desa ElShip + To (DEC Suite (untity (Marketing Pen	To Address	Alternat raveler Invalid	e Addess •

Step 2) Select Filters with Criteria for Search

The window is divided into the multiple folders available to use as search criteria. Any combination of these fields can be used together as search criteria. To begin, select a folder that contains the field(s) you wish to search. Then enter criteria for every field that is relevant to your search after using one of the *search method options* to define how the criteria should filter.

Search Method Options or operators include: Is Equal To, Is Equal to Any, Is Not Equal to Any, Less than or Equal to, Greater than or Equal to, Less than, Greater than, NOT Equal to, Starts with, Contains, NOT Contains, Is BLANK, and Is NOT BLANK. Different combinations of fields and folders can be used. If multiple fields are used as search criteria, each field is strung to the next with an "and," meaning the results of the query only include the profiles the match all of the criteria. Each marketing table is considered a separate field, so multiple items across the tables are connected with

an

"and." When selecting multiple items within one marketing table as search criteria, each item is strung together with an "or," meaning the results of the query include profiles that match any of the marketing items selected within that table. A filter named *Filter Type* for Communication, Activities, Family/Employee, Cards, Res Cards and Travel History tabs render the queries even more user friendly and flexible:

Blank Filter Type - By default a new query will have this Filter Type blank, which means the query will not be filtered in any way by that tab of information. **Does Have Records with the following criteria -** If this option is selected and no other search criteria is entered in that tab then only profiles that have that type of record will be included. For example, if you set the Travel History Filter Type to "Does Have Travel History Records with the following criteria" and no further criteria is entered, then this query will return only profiles that have any kind of Travel History.

If you enter further search criteria in this tab, then each criteria will be strung together with an "and" and the system will look for at least 1 record that meets all the criteria (in the example of Travel History it will look for at least one invoice that meets all the criteria) and if at least 1 record is found then the profile with that record will be included within the results. **Does Not Have Records with the following criteria** - If this option is selected and no search criteria is entered then only profiles that do not have any of that type of record will be included. For example, if you set the Travel History Filter Type to "Does Not Have Travel History Records with the following criteria" and no further criteria is entered, then this query returns only profiles that have never purchased anything from your agency (those with no invoices). If you enter further search criteria in this tab, then think of this option as an "Exclude", which means it doesn't matter whether the profile has that type of record or not, exclude them if they do have that type of record that meets all of the additional search criteria.

Add as many filters as are needed. Each filter is connected with an "or". (Click Modify to edit a filter, Delete to remove a

filter, Reset All to delete multiple filters.)

Step 3) Run the Query

Click Refresh to run the query based on the filters you selected. Remember, if you don't get the results you want, you can always run the query a slightly different way. Click Summarize to see a listing of all selected filters.

Step 4) Review Results

The resulting profiles from the Level 3 Query window appear with a list of the profiles that match your search criteria filters. Above the list is a total count of those profiles that matched your criteria. Run reports on these results, save the results in a Global or Personal folder, or merge the results to Labels, Document Templates, E-mails or files. From this list you can modify profile information by double-clicking on the name or by selecting the name and pressing enter. Once inside a profile record, the black up and down arrows page you through only those profiles included in this query.

Save Query Folders with Date Formulas for Future Use

Queries run in the File Managers can become guite complex. With this in mind, if there are certain gueries that you want to run often, we suggest you save query filters. That way, the next time you want to run a query that you have already setup, all you need to do is click on the folder you have saved it to.

Date fields in all queries allow for date formulas. This means any field that has a date, can also contain a formula for that date. The date formula function allows you to create a query without identifying a specific month, day and year in the From and To date fields. Instead, the query is processed with a formula for the month, day, day of the week, and year based upon the date the report is processed.

Example: Sharon wants to see how many new trip inquiries she created this month so far. Since she creates a new Res Card for each new trip inquiry, first she clicks the Res Card Manager, Level 2 Query, and then Filter. She enters a date formula for the current month in the Create Date To/From fields and clicks OK. After rearranging the columns and sorting the query to her liking, she saves the query as a Personal folder entitled, This Month's New Trip Inquiries. At any time during any month, when she clicks the saved folder, she views how many new Res Cards have been created so far that month.

Quick Steps to Save Query Folders with Date Formulas for **Future Use**

Step 1) Setup Query for the Desired Profile/s

Using any of your File Managers, query your database to locate the desired profile/s using Level 1, 2, or 3 Query.

Step 2) Use Date Formulas if Applicable

The following table contain sample formulas for specifying dates. You can mix and match the absolute and relative parameters in the function. The first number specifies the day of the month, the second number specifies the month, and the third number specifies the year. So if you only have the first number filled in, this means you want this report to

reoccur on this day every month, in every year.

1st day of this month: $=1,0,0$	months
Last day of this month: $=31,0,0$	now
1st day of this year: $=1,1,0$	=0,+3,
Last day of this year: =31,12,0	0
Seven days from now: =+7,0,0	Six months
Last Monday (will show today if today is Monday) =Mon	ago: =0,-6,0
	One
Process the Query by clicking <i>OK</i> .	year from
A week from last Monday =Mon-1	now
Next Monday =Mon+1	=0,0,+1
Step 3) Customize the Look of the Query Results Screen Inclu	ıding Sort

04/21

Three

On the Results Screen, click *Columns* to pick and choose columns you want included in the query. By using the up and down arrows, put the columns in any order you want them to appear on your Results Screen. Click *Sort by Columns* to select up to three columns to sort the results of the query in ascending or descending order. If you prefer to customize the query from the Results Screen, use your mouse to move columns where you want, and hold down <Shift> while clicking on a column heading to sort in ascending order, or click once again to sort in descending order.

<u>Step 4) Save the Query</u>

Click **File|Save Column As** to save the customized query. Folders can be saved on a Global Level, meaning the folder is available to all Users, or they can be saved on a Personal Level, which means the folder is only available for your unique User Login. Name the folder and click *OK* to save. To select a folder from the File Manager, simply click on the folder and the system will automatically complete the query filters, sift through the data, and display the outcome in the Query Results window to the right. To replace an existing saved folder with a new one, to rename or delete a folder, right click on the folder name.

Run Labels for Quick, Effective Marketing

ClientBase puts the entire marketing process at your fingertips with the ability to easily print mailing labels from your database. Print a single label while working within a client profile, or print numerous labels from the results of any of the Profile, Activity, and Res Card Manager queries. *ClientBase* queries provide a powerful marketing tool by giving you the ability to search your database using any one or any combination of client fields as search criteria. *ClientBase* makes mailings easy and efficient.

Example: Your Princess DSM offers to cover postage for 250 brochures for a highend itinerary, if you can provide the labels this week. Can you do it? With ClientBase, your labels will be printing before you can say, YES! Query your database for your Deluxe Cruisers and voila, the labels are ready.

Quick Steps to Print Labels

Step 1) Query Database for Desired Profile/s

Labels have to be set up first before you use them! This labels are set up under Global Defaults. Using any of your File Managers, query your database to locate the profile/s for which you would like to generate a label. Click *Label* on the toolbar within a profile or from the query results screen, or click **File|Merge To|Label**. If selected from the query results screen, the system gives you choices on what specific results you want included: *Current Results, *Selected Results, or *Re-query.

If you choose *Current Results*, then the system includes all of the profiles currently appearing in your query results screen. If you choose *Selected Results*, the system includes only those profiles that have been selected, or highlighted in your current query result screen. (Pick and choose specific profiles by highlighting the profiles you want to include. Do this by holding down the Ctrl key and clicking on the desired profiles.) If you choose *Re-query*, the system will take you to the Level 2 query screen for your current manager so that you can requery the desired results.

Once you have identified the appropriate results to include, click OK and preview the labels on your screen.

Step 2) Review Label Setup

At the top of the label preview screen is a tool bar. The Tool Bar includes powerful icons for viewing and customizing your printed labels. The first 5 icon buttons are for zooming in and out of the preview. The next 4 icons are for paging through the labels. The next icon is the print setup, followed by the actual print icon button.

The next icon is the Label Setup button. Click here to review or modify your current label setup. From this area, you can select one of several default label settings. The five tabs at the bottom are for even greater customizing of the label design for this one mailing only (the master remains intact).

- •1. Sheet Properties: Default label layout and dimensions.
- •2. Label Properties: Default size of the label and number of copies.
- •3. Text Properties: Font selection, color, style and size.
- •4. Options: Special features such as zip code barcode, use of upper case and printing labels for the primary or other address in a profile.
- •5. Start Position: Easily select the position to start printing on a page of labels.

<u>Step 3) Create a "Marketing Log" by Creating a Mailer for Each Profile Included</u>

Whether printing a single label from within a profile, or a large group of labels from the results of a query, *ClientBase* makes it easy to track the fact that you have mailed something to your client. When you click *Print*, you are prompted to create a *Mailer*. Also from the Print Preview screen, you can click *Create Mailers* to automatically create a Mailer record for every customer included in your results. *ALWAYS CREATE A MAILER!* Whether it's 1 result or 500 results, an individual Mailer record is attached to each profile for historical purposes. The Mailers are viewed from within the client profile by clicking on the *Activities* tab and can also be queried and printed from the Activities Manager by Date or Subject.

<u>Step 4) Print Labels</u>

From the label preview screen, a *Print Setup* button is available for selecting the desired printer settings and a *Print* button is available for printing your labels.

Print Custom Letters Easily with Document Templates

Sending personalized letters frequently helps build stronger relationships with clients. That's something *ClientBase* does best. Document templates that come with the program and have been customized for your agency make it easy to print personalized letters to clients. Your own custom agency templates to the database have created a central "library" of documents that any agent can access. The speed and ease of this feature gives agents reason to be more pro-active in their communication with their customers.

Example: In less than two minutes, an agent can print a custom "Welcome Home" letter to send to a client returning from a cruise. Another example: Once a week you query for all new customers to the agency, using profile Create Date as search criteria. From the results of the query, you can instantaneously merge all client information into a "Welcome to the Agency" letter and in seconds have all of the letters personalized and printed.

Quick Steps to Print Custom Letters

Step 1) Query Database for the Desired Profile/s

Document Templates need to be set up before you use them! This can be done under Global Defaults. Using any of your File Managers, query your database to locate the profile/s to receive a letter. Click *Letter* for the Tool Bar within a profile or from your query results screen, or click **File|Merge to|Document Templates.** If selected from the query results screen, the system gives you specific choices on the results to be included -*Current Results, *Selected Results, and *Re-query.

If you choose *Current Results*, the system includes all of the profiles currently appearing in your query results screen. If you choose *Selected Results*, the system includes only those profiles that have been selected, or highlighted in your current query result screen. (Pick and choose specific profiles by highlighting the profiles you want to include and holding down the Ctrl key and clicking on the desired profiles). If you choose *Requery*, the system takes you to the Level 2 query screen for your current manager so that you can requery the desired results.

Step 2) Select a Template (the letter you want to print)

Just above the area where you select what records to include is a field called Document Template. A drop-down list of template choices appears here for selection. Browse the different templates and see a preview before you make your selection. There's even a blank template if you want to write your own letter. This list of templates is shared with all the agents using the system.

Step 3) Make Any Necessary Changes

To make changes to just one of the documents, arrow to that document and make the desired changes from within the Document tab. To make changes to all of the Documents, click on the *Template* tab, make your changes and click *Update*. This updates all of the Documents included in this particular query, but does not permanently change the global template.

Notice that other options on the Template tool-bar allow you to change the text color, alignment, style, size or even font. You can add content in the Header or Footer of the Document. There is also a button called Insert Field that allows you to place the contents of other profile fields into the Template. Go ahead and play with these settings if you like, but when you are done, click *Update Document*.

<u>Step 4) Create a "Marketing Log" by Creating a Mailer for Each Profile</u>

Whether printing a single letter from within a profile, or a large group of letters from the results of a query, *ClientBase* makes it easy to track the fact that you have mailed something to your client. When you click *Print*, you will be asked if you want to create a *Mailer*. Also from the Print Preview screen, you can click *Create Mailers* to automatically create a Mailer record for every customer included in your results. Whether it's 1 result or 500 results, an individual Mailer record is attached to each profile for historical purposes. The Mailers are viewed from within the client profile by clicking on the *Activities* tab and can also be queried and printed from the Activities Manager by Date or Subject.

<u>Step 5) Print Document/s</u>

If you would like to alter your printer settings, click on the Print Setup button, capture your desired printer settings and click *OK*. When you are ready to print, click on the Printer button to print the Document/s.

Important Note: Create emails that are used over and over again too. These can be accessed when sending out an individual or a blast email to clients.

Save Time & Duplication with Merge to PNR

No more multiple entries or databases! *ClientBase* provides your agents with the ability to move customer information (maintained in the *ClientBase* profile) to your reservation system's PNR. This feature works with Amadeus, Apollo, Sabre, and Worldspan. Sit back and watch your database grow and watch yourself become more efficient by using your marketing database to build PNRs. You'll be surprised at how quickly existing customer information gets updated, and how quickly new customer information gets added to your marketing database, when agents use it as their source for building PNRs. Also, watch your customer loyalty grow as agents access customer information when building PNRs for your leisure clients, rather than repeatedly asking them for the same information.

Example: Ken Able calls your agency to book some flights to Paris. Your agent, Susan, first locates Ken's profile in your marketing database (ClientBase) and verifies current address and phone information. Once confirmed, she clicks the Merge to PNR button and within moments has the PNR started with all of Ken's necessary information.

Quick Steps to Merging a Profile into a PNR

<u>Step 1) Retrieve the Customer Profile</u>

Use the Level 1 Query in the Profile Manager to retrieve your desired customer profile. Verify address and phone information is current.

<u>Step 2) Click the Merge to PNR Button</u>

Click PNR located on the profile toolbar.

Step 3) Select the Information to Include

Place a check mark next to each item of information you would like to include in your current PNR. Click *Next* when items are selected.

Step 4) Review Formatted Entries and Finish

Review the information formatted for your GDS. Make any edits, and click *Finish* to transfer the data to your current PNR.

Step 5) Toggle to Your GDS to Display Your PNR

Use Alt-Tab keys, or your Windows Task-Bar, to go back to your GDS and display your current record. All customer information sent from *ClientBase* is displayed in a "live" PNR.

Email Blast – 21st Century Communication

Your agency has built a valuable database by consistently collecting and recording client data. Now it is time to put that data to work for you! Save valuable time by using the *ClientBase* E-mail "blast" which allows you to send one E-mail to any number of profiles at the same time.

Example: Your agency has just received a hot, new, Bermuda cruise special at a great price. You need to notify all your deluxe cruisers as soon as possible so that they can

take advantage of this terrific deal. Your agent, Michael, first locates all the deluxe cruisers in your database by using the Level 2 Query in ClientBase. He checks the results and clicks on the Merge to E-mail button on the toolbar. He types the details of the cruise into the Email (or he can use a Document Template he has created for the mailing). He clicks on the "Send All" button, and within minutes, each deluxe cruiser is notified of the upcoming sailing.

Quick Steps to Email Blast

Step 1) Set up your E-mail option as MAPI or SMTP

There are two E-mail options available for using *ClientBase*'s Merge to E-mail feature: **MAPI** (Messaging Application Protocol Interface) and **SMTP** (Simple Mail Text Protocol). **MAPI** requires use with compatible E-mail programs such as Microsoft Outlook, Microsoft Express, Netscape and Eudora. E-mails sent with this option do not have text formatting capabilities, although you can send Document Templates. The **SMTP** option offers 2 benefits: It does not require a MAPI compatible E-mail program for the Merge to E-mail feature in *ClientBase* to work, and with this option, you can format your text, even use HTML, as well as use Document Templates within your E-mail messages. The option for using either MAPI or SMTP as your method for sending E-mails is located within each User Login, but can be overwritten at the Workstation level.

<u>Step 2) Retrieve the Desired Customer Profiles</u>

Use the Level 1, 2, or 3 Query in the Profile Manager to retrieve your desired customer profiles. Verify the profiles you have queried are correct in the Results Screen, and that the profile E-mail addresses are valid. Only the E-mail entry flagged *Primary* is used with the Merge to E-mail feature.

<u>Step 3) Click the Merge to E-mail Button</u>

Click on the E-mail button located on the Toolbar of the Profile Manager or click File|Merge To|E-mail.

Step 4) Type the E-mail Message and Send to All Selected Profiles

For the **MAPI** option, type the E-mail message you are sending to all selected profiles, or choose the appropriate Document Template. Click *Mailer* to create a mailer for each person you are E-mailing to, and then on the "Send All" button to send completed E-mails to all selected profiles.

For the **SMTP** option complete these fields:

Priority: Select a Priority label from the drop down menu of Highest, High, Normal, Low and Lowest.

Mode: Allows you to select how you want to format the body of your message. Your choices include:

Formatted Text: This allows you to free flow your message by typing the text and using the toolbar to format it as desired. Please note if hyperlinks are included within your message, highlight the line and click the Hyperlink button on the tool bar to format it properly.

Document Templates: This allows you to complete your message by using any of your Global Document Templates. Use **Load Doc Template** to select from a listing of your global templates or use the **Insert Fields** to insert merge fields in combination with free flow text.

Raw HTML: This allows you to paste RAW HTML into the body of your message. ClientBase does not come with an HTML Editor so you either need to use a tool such as *Front Page* or *Dreamweaver* to create your HTML, or you can right click on any HTML page and copy the contents to clipboard and then paste into the RAW HTML tab.

Plain Text: Enter your E-mail message without any formatting. This message can then be viewed by E-mail recipients, regardless of their E-mail service.

Preview is available for all E-mail modes and allows you to preview your message in its formatted state before sending. Keep in mind that whether the recipient is able to view the HTML is dependent on the E-mail service used by the recipient. If HTML cannot be viewed by any of the recipients, then for just those recipients the message will be rendered to plain text.

Note: Want to test the e-mail you are sending? For SMTP, click *SMTP Settings,* and click *Test.* To keep a history of any e-mails, be sure to create a mailer record. These mailers create a history within each profile whenever an e-mail is sent.

Understand Your Database with Reporting

Computer systems can only report on the data you enter into the system. The Reports Menu in *ClientBase* provides you with a "bird's eye view" of your database to measure whether the collected data is meaningful. Use reports to plan your marketing activities, maintain quality control, and train agents to enter the information you need to meet your goals.

Example: Your agency has been using *ClientBase* for several months. You want to get an idea of the "niches" of your leisure customers, so you can plan your marketing strategy. You perform a Level 1 Query in the Profile Manager and select all leisure clients. Then click on **Reports|Profile Reports|Statistics|Marketing Stats** to get a report on the Marketing Categories and Codes of your leisure clients. The Statistics report uncovers a niche of scuba divers. Armed with this insight, you put together a fantastic scuba package and begin marketing to these clients.

Quick Steps to ClientBase Reporting

<u>Step 1) Retrieve the Profiles, Activities, Inventory Items, or Res Cards for Reporting Purposes</u>

Use the Level 1, 2 or 3 Query in the Profile, Activity, Inventory, and Res Card Managers to retrieve the desired list of profiles, activities or res cards. Verify results in the Results Screen.

<u>Step 2) Click the Report Menu</u>

Click on Reports in the File Menu and choose from Profile, Activity, Inventory, or Res Cards Reports. The system gives you specific choices on the results to be included - *Current Results, *Selected Results, and *Requery.

*If you choose *Current Results*, the system includes all of the profiles currently appearing in your query results screen. If you choose *Selected Results*, the system includes only those profiles that have been selected, or highlighted in your current query result screen. (Pick and choose specific profiles by highlighting the profiles you want to include and holding down the Ctrl key and clicking on the desired profiles). If you choose *Requery*, the system takes you to the Level 2 query screen for your current manager so that you can requery the desired results.

Step 3) Select the Report and Run

After clicking the report you want to run, the results appear for printing in a preview screen. Choose the appropriate printer and number of copies in the *Printer Setup*, and then click *Print*.

Hint: The *Current Query Results* report prints out whatever is in the Results Screen (what you see is what you get). Click *Columns* to pick and choose columns you want included in the report. By using the up and down arrows, put the columns in any order you want them to appear on report. Click *Sort by Columns* to select up to three columns to sort the results of the query in ascending or descending order. If you prefer to customize the query from the Results Screen, use your mouse to move columns where you want, and hold down <Shift> while clicking on a column heading to sort in ascending order. or click once again to sort in descending order.

There are dozens of extra ClientBase reports on our website. Click on the Trams Crystal Report link when you see it to find directions on how to use these reports.

Manage the Trip Planning Process with Res Cards

The Res Card feature in *ClientBase* provides a perfect tool to integrate all processes in trip planning. By setting up a Res Card, an agent can document the client's first call by creating a new Res Card and scheduling a follow-up call (listed on the daily to-do list) with a *Reminder*. Once the customer is considering the trip, the agent captures details of reservations and prints out client quotes or itineraries. By using the Live Connect feature in *ClientBase*, agents have the ability to book reservations via on-line booking engines and then pull all that reservation detail back into the Res Card.



When the client books the trip, the agent produces invoices and trip statements, while tracking invoiced and uninvoiced balances. Additional notes and reminders are created to remind an agent of a final payment date or a document confirmation. When the customer returns home, the agent documents his remarks and suggestions. Because all client trip data is in one localized area, reports such as Final Payment, Vendor Booking and Service Provider Activity are produced for Res Cards in all stages of implementation of the trip planning process.

As *ClientBase* shares a database with *Trams Back Office*, the invoices generated from the Res Card automatically become part of the invoices shared with *Trams Back Office*. Invoices generated through the Res Card maintain their own numbering system, separate from the numbering system of invoices generated through Interface.

Each Res Card represents one trip; therefore, customers are likely to have multiple Res Cards in their profiles at any one time. Depending on your agency's needs, enter as much or as little trip information on each Res Card as desired. When talking with your clients and vendors, get in the habit of entering the information directly into the Res Card rather than jotting the notes on paper and then transferring the information into

the computer.

Example: Michael Blue inquires about Deluxe Crystal Sailings to the Bahamas. Instead of documenting all contacts about this trip manually on paper, our agent, Sharon, starts a Bahamas Res Card for Michael in ClientBase. Every time Sharon has contact with Michael or any vendors/suppliers about this trip, she calls up Michael's Bahamas Res Card and adds information to it. She adds Reminders for first deposit, final deposit, to check for documents, and to welcome home. These reminders show up in her daily To-Do List. At any point she prints out an itinerary, generates an invoice or trip statement for Michael, or tracks his uninvoiced balance due.

Quick Steps to Automate Res Cards

<u>Step 1) Start a Res Card with Each and Every New Trip Inquiry</u>

Use the Level 1 Query in the Profile Manager to retrieve your desired customer profile. Verify address and phone information is current. Click *Res Card* on the Toolbar and fill in *Reservation Cycle, Trip Name and Travelers* to start the tracking trip details. Click *Apply* and in the *Activities Tab,* enter a Reminder to schedule a follow-up.

Step 2) Enter Reservation Details When Learned

As the trip progresses and vendors are on the phone with confirmation numbers, rooming details, or any other trip detail, query up the Res Card under the Res Card tab in the Client Profile, or in the Res Card Manager, and modify the Res Card.

Live Connect: Click on this button to access participating on-line booking engines (see section below).

Inventory: Click on this button to access inventory items available with all details for use (see section below).

Step 3) Organize and Schedule Administrative Tasks

Once any reservations have been booked, use *Batch Reminders* to schedule and organize all the administrative tasks you need to do such as checking deposit, final payment, waitlists and documents. Under the Activities Tab, or at top of the res card, click *Batch Reminders* to select and launch appropriate new reminders all at once. These reminders can be viewed either in the actual Res Card, or in the Activities Tab in the Profile.

<u>Step 4) Generate Invoices, Itineraries or Trip Statements As Needed</u>

At any point in the trip planning process, generate client quotes, itineraries, invoices, or trip statements as needed. These documents can be customized with an agency header or footer. Any invoice generated in *ClientBase* automatically enters *Trams Back Office*, as these two programs share the same database.

<u>Step 5) Welcome Your Customer Home</u>

Use a Reminder to schedule a Welcome Home Letter and Welcome Home Call. While talking with your customer, capture feedback in the Client Feedback tab. Toggle into the customer profile to enter any new customer details, such as newly learned travel preferences or other personal information. Enter any pertinent details about the vendor or service provider into their profiles as well, so other agents can benefit from what you learn.

Hint: Don't forget to use the "Cut and Paste" feature in *Windows* to save time during the entry process. Highlight text in the Res Card, copy it, then paste it into the Client, Vendor, or Service Provider profile if desired.

Quick Steps to Create Res Cards/Invoices

These are suggested steps which can be used as a foundation for your own invoicing process. These steps will create a BASIC Res Card and invoice:

- 1) For every client trip, find the client profile. If no profile exists, create a new one.
- 2) In the client profile, make sure the profile contains the following info: Accurate address, phone and email. 3) Click
 - the Traveler tab and review traveler list. Add any missing travelers by entering the First/Last Name to start.
- 4) Click the *Cards* tab and review credit card (including valid expiration date) or other card information as needed for this trip. Edit or Add Card.
- 5) Click the *Res Card* tab and check for an existing Res Card. If a Res Card does not exist, click Res Card icon on toolbar at top of profile and create a new Res Card. All reservations and invoices are kept inside the Res Card. One Res Card per trip.
- 6) In new Res Card, choose appropriate Reservation Cycle (always use drop-downs if available), enter a meaningful Trip Name (used to find Res Card in profile or Res Card Manager), and select applicable Traveler Names. Click *Apply*.
- 7) From Reservation tab, add reservation to enter reservation details. For vendor, type in a few letters of vendor's name, tab, and choose from drop-down. (If there is not profile in system, create one.) Make sure the Travel Category is correct for this vendor.
- 8) Enter confirmation #, total pricing for this reservation, and in the Service Provider area Trip Start Date/End Date along with any additional details. Click OK to save. (If this vendor is arranging more than one Service Provider for this reservation; i.e., cruise, insurance, tour, etc., the details may be individually added by inserting each in the Service Provider area.) Want to totally break out pricing line by line? Use the *Itemize* area.
- 9) From main screen, continue entering reservations for each new vendor.
- 10) Apply to save all Res Card changes. Click the Generate Invoice icon on toolbar at top of screen.

11) Click Remarks and select desired remarks (created in **Utilities|Branch**) which prints at the bottom of the invoice. Enter a Trip Balance Due Date if applicable. Select *Form of Payment* area at top of generate invoice screen for one FOP. If split forms of payments or multiple forms of payments are used, click the reservation and use the *Booking Payment* button.

- 12) In the *This Invoice area*, enter the actual dollar amount paid at this time and the correct *Travel Type* and *Submit To*. On a credit card sale, if the Submit to is CommTrack and the booking is actually being paid (as opposed to a hotel guarantee), then make sure the *Showed as Paid* box is checked. Repeat process for each reservation being invoiced at this time. *Preview*.
- 13) If the amounts or other information doesn't look correct in preview, return to reservation and correct. Otherwise click *Generate Invoice* to issue the invoice. At this time, the invoice may be printed or e-mailed from this screen. The invoice is now permanently available in the *Invoices* tab of the Res Card for reprint/e-mail at any time.

Using Live Connect

One of the most innovative features in *ClientBase* is Live Connect in the Res Card. Save time and improve efficiency by transmitting selected client information to a booking engine on-line. Then electronically transmit back reservation details and automatically complete the reservation form with what's been booked! Print out client quotes or itineraries, generate invoices and trip statements. (As ClientBase shares a database with *Trams Back Office*, the invoices generated from the Res Card automatically become part of the invoices shared with *Trams Back Office*.)



Currently ClientBase has over 60 Live Connect Providers available for use, but continues to add more on-line booking engines all the time. (Please refer to the help files inside the program, or manual for a current list of Live Connect Providers.)

Example: Ken Able calls to book a Las Vegas getaway on his credit card. Agent Mary creates a new Res Card and uses Live Connect to book the trip. After booking on-line, she pulls the booking details back into the Res Card. She prints out Ken's itinerary, and generates his invoice which automatically lands in Trams Back Office.

Quick Steps to Using Live Connect

Prior to using Live Connect in *ClientBase*, the System Database Administrator needs to do Live Connect set up.

Step 1) Start a Res Card

When ready to book on-line, create a client's Res Card (after double-checking address/communication, credit card and traveler information). Fill in the *Agent, Branch, Status, Reservation Cycle,* and *Trip Name* fields and select the travelers.

Step 2) Click on the Reservation Tab, and then Add

If you do not know what vendor you are using, use the *Live Connect* button at the Res Card level. If you know the vendor, fill in the *Travel Category* and *Vendor* fields and then click on the *Live Connect* button at the reservation level.

<u>Step 3) Select the Live Connect Provider</u>

Select the Live Connect Provider you are using to book this reservation from the drop-down menu by *Connect To* and then click on *Create New Reservations*.

<u>Step 4) Select Customer Data You Need to Book the Reservation and Click Connect</u>

Presented with a profile data screen, check information in this screen to be passed to the booking engine. If no screen appears, then the information can be viewed in the upper gray part of the *ClientBase* window that the booking engine runs in, so that you can more easily re-key it into the booking engine if necessary.

<u>Step 5) Complete the Reservation & Import Data into ClientBase</u>

Complete the reservations using instructions supplied to you by the booking engine when you registered. Make sure you receive a confirmation number ensuring the reservations have been completed and click on *Import Reservation*.

Step 6) Generate Itineraries and Invoices

All reservation data booked online is now located in the reservation fields in ClientBase for you to generate itineraries and invoices, and print reports.

If you do not start the reservation in ClientBase, but know the confirmation number, click *Import Reservation* when Live Connect is launched.

Using Inventory in ClientBase

In ClientBase you can use inventory items for block space that have been created, and integrate them into the reservation area of res cards. The process is an easy one. Block space inventory records are first created for air, cruise, hotel, rail, tour, and miscellaneous reservations. Each inventory item is entered one time, with details of the pricing, itinerary, deposit and payment due dates, as well as invoice/itinerary remarks. An agent creates a reservation and pulls from the list of created inventory records. All *Inventory Details* automatically drop into this reservation and create a link to the inventory record; therefore tracking what inventory has been taken and what is left for sale. What a great way to manage block space and what a time saver! No more manually tracking inventory using paper controls or supplemental spreadsheet or database programs.

Example: Agent Michael creates a res card reservation and clicks Inventory to query for inventory that was created for block space for an Ensenada cruise. After locating the item he wants to use, he clicks Pull from Inventory, and inventory information automatically falls into the

reservation portion of a Res Card, which also links to update what inventory items are remaining for sale.

Quick Steps to Using Inventory

Prior to using Inventory in *ClientBase*, the inventory items need to be created.

Step 1) Start a Res Card and Reservation

When ready to book a trip, create a client's Res Card (after double-checking address and communication information), and fill in the Agent, Status, Reservation Cycle, and Trip Name fields and select the travelers. Create a reservation and fill in Travel Category.

Step 2) Click on Inventory to Query/View Inventory item/s you want to sell

A Level 2 Inventory Query screen appears to query your database of inventory based upon the travel needs of the client. Use any Inventory Header fields as filters (search criteria), as well as Itinerary/Flight/Address Info and Inventory Detail information. Each filter entered into the Query fields is "anded" together with other filters, so any results match all filters. The more filters entered, the narrower the search and generally fewer results. The fewer filters entered, the more general the search and generally more results. Enter the criteria you know about your client's trip needs and click *OK* to view a listing of the Inventory that matches your search criteria.

A one-line listing of each *Inventory Detail* that matches your criteria appears at the top of your screen, with a visual display of the Inventory Detail currently highlighted at the bottom of the screen. Use the arrow key, or the mouse to highlight the desired Inventory Detail and view the data stored within that Inventory Detail, including what's been Blocked, Sold and Available. To view more information about that Inventory Detail, click *View Inventory Record* at the bottom right hand corner.

<u>Step 3) Pull From Inventory</u>

If you have located the desired Inventory and take one of the Available Seats/Cabins/Rooms, click *Pull from Inventory* button, and the system returns you to the reservation record with all the inventory fields defaulting in your reservation fields. This simultaneously links the reservation to the Inventory Detail, therefore allowing your agency to track what's been taken or *Sold*, and therefore what's now *Available*. Any reservation that is linked to inventory displays the *Inventory ID* and the *Quantity* taken in the upper right hand corner of the reservation record. The link to that Inventory Detail remains permanent, unless the reservation is deleted, or the Reservation Status is changed to *Cancelled* or *Quoted*, at which time you are prompted for confirmation and if accepted, the link removed and the inventory replaced back into *Available* inventory.

Step 4) Proceed with Generating Itinerary and/or Invoice